City of Rockaway Beach
City Council Workshop Agenda

Date: Wednesday, March 12, 2025
Time: 4:30 P.M. —5:40 P.M.
Location: Rockaway Beach City Hall, 276 HWY 101 — 2" Floor Conference Room

Watch live stream here: corb.us/live-stream
View meeting later here: corb.us/city-council

Join here to attend remotely:
https://usO6web.zoom.us/j/84563876311?pwd=1CYzaDYRHcTRxajaA1gNmRIPD1Qqz3.1
Meeting ID: 845 6387 6311

Passcode: 660667

Dial by your location

253215 8782 US (Tacoma)

What is a City Council Workshop? Workshops are intended to allow for preliminary discussions by the City
Council and staff. Workshops are held to present information to the Council so that the Council is prepared
for upcoming regular meetings. Workshops are subject to Oregon’s public meeting law and must be noticed
accordingly. No final City Council decisions are made during workshops. The public is encouraged to attend
workshops but may not participate unless expressly asked.

Note: Agenda item times are estimates and are subject to change.
1. CALLTO ORDER (4:30 p.m.)

2. ROLLCALL

3. COUNCIL BRIEFING/DISCUSSION

a. Presentation - Tillamook County Visitors Association — Nan Devlin (4:31 p.m.)
- Events & Activities to support tourism in shoulder season

- Tourism workforce training + education programs

b. Review of Draft Revisions to City Council Rules & Procedures (5:10 p.m.)

c. Review of Resolution 2025-13 Approving Salmonberry Trail Preferred Alignment In
Rockaway Beach (5:20 p.m.)

d. Other Regular Session Agenda Items Review (5:30 p.m.)

4. ADJOURNMENT (5:35 p.m.)

Rockaway Beach City Hall is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to City Hall at 503-374-1752.


https://corb.us/live-stream
https://corb.us/city-council/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84563876311?pwd=1CYzaDYRHcTRxajaA1gNmRIPD1Qqz3.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

EFFECTIVE DATE: August 11, 2023

POLICY NUMBER: 100.1 REVIEWED:
REVISED:
RELATED DOCUMENTS:
City Charter
CATEGORY: Administration Code Chapter 33: City Council

Ordinance 23-444 — amending Code Ch. 33
Resolution 23-995 — adopting this policy

Section 1.

11

1.2

1.3

Section 2.

2.1

2.2

Policy 100.1

AUTHORITY.

The authority for adopting this policy is Chapter lll, Section 9, Charter of the City of
Rockaway Beach which states, "The Council must by resolution adopt rules to govern its
meetings."

These Council rules are to be supplementary and subordinate to the City Charter, the
laws of the State of Oregon and the United States of America.

The Council shall review these rules at least once every two years. Amendments shall be
adopted by a majority vote of the full Council excluding the Mayor.

MEETINGS AND WORKSHOPS.

Definition. ORS 192.610 (5) states that a meeting means the convening of the governing
body of a public body for which a quorum is required in order to make a decision or to
deliberate toward a decision on any matter. Council meetings and workshops are
subject to Oregon Public Meetings Law (ORS 192.610-192.690).

Regular Meetings. The Council shall meet regularly, at least once each month, on the
second Wednesday at 6:00 p.m. within the City of Rockaway Beach. The meeting
calendar shall be set by the Council each December for the following year.

2.2.A. Mayor's Vote. The Mayor has no vote unless the voting members of the Council
are split evenly, or as otherwise provided in the City Charter.

2.2.B. Mayor's Functions:

1. Act as Chairperson of Council meetings and preside over deliberations of
the Council.
2. Preserve order.

3 Enforce Council rules.

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 1 of 17




2.3

2.4

2.5

Policy 100.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

4., Determine the order of business before the Council.

2.2.C. Council President. Except in voting on questions before the Council, the
President shall function as Mayor when the Mayor is:

1. Absent from a Council meeting.

2. Unable to function as Mayor.

Special Meetings. The Mayor, or in the Mayor's absence the president of the Council, or
the City Manager may call a meeting at any time, or shall on written petition of three
Councilors, call a meeting at any time for the transaction of the business mentioned in
the petition.

2.3.A. Special meetings shall be noticed in accordance with Oregon public meetings
law, and, at a minimum, shall be noticed at least 24 hours prior to the meeting
taking place.

2.3.B. Written notice of a special meeting shall be given each member of the Council.

2.3.C. Written notice shall be posted at City Hall and the Post Office. Members of the
media who have asked to be notified of meetings shall be notified in the usual
manner.

2.3.D. The Council President shall attempt to contact the Mayor, by the most
expeditious means possible, if the President schedules a special meeting or
executive session of the Council in the Mayor's absence. The intent would be to
provide the Mayor with the opportunity to attend the meeting, if possible.

Emergency Meetings. In the case of an actual emergency, the Mayor, or in the Mayor's
absence, the President of the Council, or in the Mayor’s and President’s absence, a
guorum of the City Council, or the City Manager may call an emergency meeting on less
than 24 hours’ notice. The minutes of the meeting shall describe the emergency
justifying less than 24 hours’ notice [ORS 192.640(3)]. An attempt must be made to
contact the media and other interested parties to inform them of the meeting. Such
contacts may be by telephone, email, facsimile, or other electronic means.

Public Hearings Generally.

2.5.A. A public hearing may be held on any matter upon majority vote of the council.
Public hearings may be held to consider legislative, quasi-judicial or
administrative matters.

2.5.B. Persons wishing to speak shall sign the “public comment sign-up sheet” with the
person’s name and address prior to the commencement of the public hearing at
which the person wishes to speak.

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 2 of 17



2.6

2.7

Policy 100.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

2.5.C.

2.5.D.

2.5.E.

The presiding officer shall announce at the commencement of any public
hearing the subject of the hearing as it is set forth on the agenda. The presiding
officer shall then declare the hearing open.

Each person shall, prior to giving testimony, give-his-erherstate their name_and;
shall indicate whether they are a resident of the city;-. Speakers may indicate if

they own a business within the city. and-may-give-theiraddress—All remarks

shall be addressed to the council as a body and not to any member thereof.

Speakers at hearings on legislative or administrative matters, other than
legislative land use matters, will be limited to three minutes.

General Conduct of Hearings.

2.6.A.

2.6.B.

2.6.C.

2.6.D.

2.6.E.

2.6.F.

Any party may speak in person, through an attorney, or elect to have a
representative from an officially recognized neighborhood association present
the party’s case.

A copy of any written testimony or physical evidence which a party desires to
have introduced into the record at the time of hearing shall be submitted to the
City Recorder at the time the party makes his or her presentation. If the
testimony or evidence is not submitted to the City Recorder, it shall not be
included in the record for the proceeding.

No person may speak more than once without obtaining permission from the
Presiding Officer.

Upon being recognized by the Presiding Officer, any member of the Council, the
City Manager, City Planner or the City Attorney may question any person who
testifies.

Testimony shall be directed towards the applicable standards and criteria which
apply to the proposal before the council.

The Presiding Officer may exclude or limit cumulative, repetitious, or immaterial
testimony. To expedite hearings, the presiding officer may call for those in favor
and those in opposition to rise, and the city recorder shall note the numbers of
such persons for the record in the minutes.

Quasi-Judicial Land Use Matters.

2.7.A.

2.7.B.

Scope of Review. All appeals and council-initiated review in quasi-judicial land
use proceedings shall be new (de novo) or shall be held on the record.

Conflicts of Interest.

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 3 of 17



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

1. A member of the council shall not participate in a discussion or vote in a
quasi-judicial land use proceeding if:

a. The member has an actual conflict of interest as defined by the
Oregon Revised Statutes or the City Charter.

b. The member was not present during the public hearing; provided,
however, the member may participate if they have reviewed the
evidence, including recordings of the hearing, and declared such fact for
the record.

2. Members of the Council shall reveal any ex parte contacts with regard to the
proceeding at the commencement of any quasi-judicial land use proceeding
Burden of Proof. The proponent has the burden of proof on all elements of the
proposal, and the proposal must be supported by proof that it conforms to all
applicable standards and criteria.

a. The decision of the Council shall be based on the applicable standards
and criteria as set forth in the City’s municipal code, the City’s
comprehensive plan, and, if applicable, any other land use standards
imposed by state law or administrative rule

b. The proponent, any opponents, and/or city staff may submit to the
council a set of written findings or statements of factual information
which are intended to demonstrate the proposal complies or fails to
comply with any or all applicable standards and criteria.

3. Hearing Procedures. Quasi-judicial land use hearings procedures shall be
conducted in accordance with ORS 197.797 unless otherwise provided in the
land use ordinances. The order of hearings in quasi-judicial land use matters
shall include:

a. Land Use Hearing Disclosure Statement. The presiding officer shall
read the land use hearing disclose statement, which shall include:

1) A list of the applicable criteria;

2) A statement that testimony, arguments and evidence must
be directed toward the applicable criteria or other criteria in the
plan or land use regulation which the person believes to apply
to the decision;

3) A statement that failure to raise an issue accompanied by
statements or evidence sufficient to afford the council and the

Policy 100.1 COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 4 of 17



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

parties an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal
to the Land Use Board of Appeals based on that issue; and

4) If applicable, a statement that a failure to raise constitutional
issues relating to proposed conditions of approval precludes an
action for damages in circuit court.

b. Call for ex parte contacts. The presiding officer shall inquire whether
any member of the council has had ex parte contacts. Any member of
the council announcing an ex parte contact shall state for the record the
nature and content of the contact.

c. Call for abstentions. The presiding officer shall inquire whether any
member of the Council must abstain from participating in the hearing
due to a conflict of interest. Any member of the Council announcing a
conflict of interest shall state the nature of the conflict, and shall not
participate in the proceeding, unless the person’s vote is necessary to
meet a requirement of a minimum number of votes necessary to take
official action; provided, however, that the member shall not participate
in any discussion or debate on the issue of which the conflict arises.

d. Staff summary. Planning staff shall present a summary and
recommendation concerning the proposal.

e. Presentation of the Case

1) Applicant/Proponent’s case. (Encouraged to limit to twenty
minutes total.)

2) Appellant, if other than applicant. (Encouraged to limit to
twenty minutes total.)

2) Persons in favor. Three minutes per person.

3) Persons opposed. Three minutes per person.

4) Other interested persons. Three minutes per person.
5) Staff response/clarification.

5) Rebuttal. Ten minutes total. Rebuttal may be presented by
the applicant/proponent. The scope of rebuttal is limited to
matters which were introduced during the hearing.

f. Close of hearing. No further information shall be received after the
close of the hearing, except for specific questions directed to staff. If the

Policy 100.1 COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 5 of 17



2.8

Policy 100.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

response to any such questions requires the introduction of additional
factual evidence, all parties shall be afforded an opportunity for
simultaneous written rebuttal.

g. Deliberations. Deliberations shall immediately follow the hearing. The
Council may delay deliberations to a subsequent date and time certain.

h. Findings and Order. The Council may approve or reject the proposal.

1) The Council may direct staff to prepare findings to support its
decision.

2) The Council may incorporate findings proposed by the
proponent, the opponent, or staff in its decision.

i. Continuances. A party can obtain either a continuance or an open
record period. However, nothing in this section shall restrict the Council,
in its discretion, from granting additional continuances. There is a 120-
day time limitation, imposed by the Oregon Revised Statutes, and this
120-day period is not extended unless the applicant requested the
continuance or if the applicant otherwise agrees to the extension of the
time limitation.

Legislative Land Use Matters.

2.8.A Hearings Procedures. The order of procedures for hearings on legislative land
use matters shall be:

1. Call for abstentions. Inquire whether any member of the Council wishes to
abstain from participation in the hearing. Any member announcing an
abstention shall identify the reason therefore and shall not participate in the
proceedings.

2. Staff summary. Staff shall present a statement of the applicable criteria, and a
summary and recommendation concerning the proposal.

3. Presentation of the Case.
a. Proponent’s case. Twenty minutes total.
b. Persons in favor. Three minutes per person.
c. Persons opposed. Three minutes per person.

d. Other interested persons. Three minutes per person.

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 6 of 17



2.9

2.10

2.11

Policy 100.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

4. Close of hearing. No further information shall be received after the close of
the hearing, except for responses to specific questions directed to staff.

5. Deliberations. Deliberations shall immediately follow the hearing. The Council
may delay deliberations to a subsequent time certain.

6. Reopening hearing. Prior to second reading of an ordinance relating to a
legislative land use matter, and upon majority vote of the Council, a hearing
may be reopened to receive additional testimony, evidence or argument. The
same notice requirements shall be met for the reopened hearing as were
required for the original hearing.

Executive Sessions. Executive sessions may be held during regular or special meetings,
or as stand alone meetings, so long as appropriate statutory limitations are met. Written
notice shall be posted at City Hall, the Post Office, the City’s website and sent out
through the city’s listserv email listing. Members of the media who have asked to be
notified of meetings shall be notified in the usual manner.

2.9.A. Only members of the Council, the City Manager and persons specifically invited
by the City Manager or the Council shall be allowed to attend executive
sessions.

2.9.B. Representatives of recognized news media may attend executive sessions, other
than those sessions during which the Council conducts deliberations with
persons designated to carry on labor negotiations, or where the matter involves
litigation and the news media is a party to the litigation.

Continuation of a Meeting. Upon majority vote of the Council any meeting may be
continued to a later date or time, provided that no continuation or adjournment shall be
for a period longer than the next regular scheduled meeting.

Workshops. Workshops are permitted to present information to the Council so that the
Council is prepared for regular or special meetings. Workshops shall be held as needed
to gather information and informally discuss specific issues or questions. The public may
attend workshops. but may not participate unless expressly asked.

2.11.A All workshops are subject to Oregon’s public meetings law and must be noticed
accordingly.

2.11.B. Workshops are intended to allow for preliminary discussions, and the Council is
not permitted to take formal or final action on any matter at a workshop.

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 7 of 17



2.12

Section 3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

Policy 100.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

2.11.C. Workshops are to be scheduled by the City Manager. Workshops are typically

held at least once a month, on the second Wednesday at 4:30 p.m.

2.11.D. The City Manager is to invite any relevant staff to workshops so that the
sessions are as productive as possible.

Attendance by City Manager. The City Manager shall attend all Council meetings unless
excused by the Council or the Mayor. Staff shall attend when requested by the City
Manager.

MECHANICS OF MEETINGS.

Quorum. Pursuant to the City Charter, Section 11, three of the five voting council
members shall constitute a quorum to conduct business. The Mayor, or in his/her
absence the president of the Council, shall call the meeting to order at the hour
designated for the meeting. If a quorum is not present, the City Manager shall
immediately inform the absent members, except those known to be unavoidably
detained, that their presence is required. If the absent member or members do not
appear after the notice, the members present shall adjourn until a specific time or until
the next regular meeting.

Rules of Order. Unless otherwise provided by law or by these rules, the procedure for
Council meetings shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised. The
Council has an obligation to the citizens to be clear and simple in its procedures and in
the consideration of questions coming before it. Therefore, the rules of procedure
should be liberally construed to that purpose. Councilors should avoid invoking the finer
points of parliamentary rules that serve only to obscure the issues and arouse the
suspicion of the audience at public meetings and the citizens in general. The Presiding
Officer shall determine all points of order, subject to the right of any member to appeal
to the Council.

Agenda. An agenda for each regular Council meeting shall be prepared by the City
Manager. Council members may request that specific items be included on the agenda.
The City Manager should be given enough time to do necessary research or prepare
necessary reports to address the agenda items. Agendas for regular Council meetings
shall be posted at City Hall and the Post Office at least 5 days prior to the meeting time.
The Council shall consider at the meeting only matters that appear on the agenda for
that meeting, except in the case of an emergency. The Council may discuss items added
by a Council member at the meeting. The City Manager may remove any items on the
consent agenda, any item of old business, new business, any resolution, or any

ordinance placed for first reading from the agenda at any time prior to the time the

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 8 of 17



3.4

3.5

Policy 100.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

meeting is convened. The presiding officer shall announce such removal under
announcements.

Consent Agenda. In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, the City Manager
shall place minor administrative items, such as the approval of the order of business on
the agenda, meeting minutes and financial reports, that are routine in nature and
concerning which no debate is expected on a "consent agenda." Any item placed on the
consent agenda shall be removed at the request of a Councilor prior to the time a vote
is taken on the consent agenda. All remaining items on the consent agenda shall be
disposed of by a single motion "to adopt the consent agenda," which shall not be
debatable. Adoption of the consent agenda shall be by the affirmative vote of all
Councilors present at the time the vote is taken and shall have the same effect as a
separate vote for each item. If there are dissenting votes, each item on the consent
agenda shall be voted upon separately in the usual manner.

Order of Business. The order of business at regular Council meetings shall be as follows
unless amended by the Council when adopting the consent calendar:

THE FOLLOWING SHOULD BE ALTERED AS NEEDED OR DESIRED
1) Call to Order

2) Pledge of Allegiance
3) Roll Call
4) Oaths of Office

5) Consent Agenda

6) Presentations, guests, and announcements
7) Staff Reports

8) Public Hearings

9) Public comment on non-agenda items

104)  Old Business_(includes opportunity for public comment)

1211) New Business (includes opportunity for public comment)

1312) Items Removed From Consent Agenda
13) Committee reports
14) Council Comments

1615) Mayor’s Report

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 9 of 17



3.6

3.7

Policy 100.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

16) Adjournment

Record of Proceedings.

3.6.A A written record, commonly called minutes, shall be kept of all meetings except
Executive Sessions and maintained by the city in accordance with the appropriate record
retention schedule. Executive Sessions shall be recorded by audio only, except as
required by law. The minutes shall contain the following information:

1) The date, time and place of the meeting;
2) The members present;
3) The motions, proposals, resolutions, orders, ordinances, and measures

proposed and their disposition;

4) The results of all votes and the vote of each member by name;
5) The substance of any discussion on any matter; and
6) A reference to any document discussed at the meeting.

Minutes shall record the substance of the meeting and be concise. Verbatim minutes
are not required.

3.6.B  The Council shall approve all minutes of any City Council meeting. All minutes
shall be approved within ninety days of the meeting having occurred. The draft minutes
shall be submitted to the Council as part of the Council’s packet prior to the meeting
where they will be discussed. Upon receipt of the minutes in the Council agenda packet,
the Council Members should review them and if possible, submit any corrections to the
City Recorder in order that a corrected copy can be prepared prior to the meeting for
approval. Generally, minutes appear under the Consent Agenda. If minor amendments
are made to the minutes, a Councilor may offer such amendment prior to the Consent
Agenda being adopted. For an extensive amendment, the Council shall remove the
minutes from the Consent Agenda for separate consideration. Upon an affirmative vote
of the majority of the Councilors present, the Council may postpone approval of the
minutes until the City Recorder has reviewed the recording of the portion of the
meeting in question. The Council is final authority as to the amendment to the minutes
upon an affirmative vote of the majority of the Councilors present.

3.6.C. Avideo or audio recording of meetings shall be posted online. Recordings will
be posted online within 5 business days after the meeting, whenever feasible.

Written Communications to the Council.

3.7.A. Written comments concerning matters on the agenda received no later than
48 hours prior to the Council meeting will be distributed to the Council and
posted online as Public Comment. Comments shall not be individually itemized
on the agenda. All written comments submitted at a meeting become part of
the permanent public meeting record.

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 10 of 17



3.8

3.9

Policy 100.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

3.7.B.

3.7.C.

Unsolicited communications to the Mayor and/or Council concerning matters
that are not on an agenda and are not submitted as testimony for a meeting
shall be distributed to the mayor and/or Council but shall not be included in the
agenda packet or online materials.

The City Manager may, in his or her discretion, bring any matter raised by an
unsolicited communication to the attention of the Council as an agenda item,
provided that such communication is accompanied by a staff report setting
forth the reason the matter should be considered by the Council, and making a
recommendation for Council action.

Decorum.

3.8.A.

3.8.B.

3.8.C.

3.8.D.

The Presiding Officer shall preserve decorum during meetings and shall decide
all points of order, subject to appeal of the Council.

Members of the Council shall preserve decorum during meetings, and shall not,
by conversation or action, delay or interrupt the proceedings or refuse to obey
the orders of the Presiding Officer or these rules. - Council members shall at all
times conduct themselves in a manner appropriate to the dignity of their office.

Members of the city staff and all other persons attending meetings shall
observe the Council’s rules of proceedings and adhere to the same standards of
decorum as members of Council.

Audience members who are causing an actual disruption can be removed from
the public meeting. Persons who interrupt a meeting’s proceeding by
repeatedly shouting out and yelling, including individuals located in a different
room than an actual public meeting who are protesting so loudly that it
interferes with the meeting, may be removed from the area, after fair warning,
if the Presiding Officer so directs. In case the Presiding Officer should fail to act,
any Councilor may obtain the floor and move to require enforcement of this
rule. Upon affirmative vote of the majority of the Council present, the person or
persons shall be removed as if the Presiding Officer so directed. If a person’s
disruption of a meeting is such that it threatens the safety and security of the
public, the Council can request that the person in question be arrested for
disorderly conduct

Speaking by Council Members and City Manager.

3.9.A.

Councilors, the City Manager and staff shall be recognized by the Presiding
Officer before speaking, unless bringing up a point of order. Upon recognition
by the Presiding Officer, the Council member or City Manager shall speak and
confine his or her remarks to the matter at hand.

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 11 of 17



3.10

Policy 100.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

3.9.B.

A Council member desiring to question a city employee shall address the
questions to the City Manager who shall be entitled to either answer the inquiry
or designate a staff member to do so. Council members may direct questions to
employees as follow-up to their staff reports or Council meeting presentations.

Public Comment by Members of the Audience.

3.10.A.

3.10.B.

3.10.C.

3.10.D.

3.10.E.

3.10.F.

Two periods for public comment will be reserved for every regular meeting of
the Council. Each period shall not exceed a maximum of 40 minutes, unless a
majority of Councilors present vote to extend the time. The first period for
public comment shall be allowed during scheduled business items placed on the
agenda (other than public hearings), and the second period of public comment
shall be used to comment on any issue of city business, other than agenda
items. The Presiding Officer may, unless a member of Council objects, allow a
person who desires to comment on an item not on the agenda to speak during
the first comment period.

Audience members shall be recognized by the Presiding Officer before speaking.
Persons wishing to speak in person during public comment must sign the “public
comment sign-up sheet” with the person’s name and place of residence,

address-and the topic upon which the person wishes to speak, not later than the
call to order. This information shall be used to ensure the minutes of the
meeting properly reflect those persons who provided public comment. Persons
wishing to speak remotely during public comment will be requested to use the
“raise hand” feature.

Members of the public may speak about any topic during the last period for
public comment, except as provided in 3.10.E of this rule.

Public comment is a time for comment, it is not a time for debate, noris it a
time for members of the public to ask questions of and receive answers from
the Council or city staff.

If a member of the public wishes to speak on an item that is scheduled for a
public hearing at that same meeting, the speaker shall wait until that public
hearing. Public comment shall not be used to testify about a quasi-judicial land
use matter, to testify on an item that is not a public matter, to testify on a
matter which has been or is scheduled to be heard by a hearings official, or to
provide or gather additional testimony or information on any matter after the
official record has been closed on any matter which has been the subject of a
public hearing.

Speakers are limited to four minutes. Generally, the speakers will be called upon
in the order in which they have signed in on the sign-up sheet. Speakers shall

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 12 of 17



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

identify themselves by their names and by their place of residence. Speakers
may may indicate if they own a business within the city.state-theirmailing
address. The Presiding Officer may allow additional persons to speak if they
have not signed the speaker’s roster and sufficient time is left in the 40-minute

period.

3.10.G. Should there be more speakers than can be heard for four minutes each during
either of the 40-minute periods provided for public comment, the Presiding
Officer may sort the requests to speak in order to afford the greatest
opportunity for each topic to be heard.

3.11 Decisions. The Council shall not make a decision on any item that affects the public, or any

individual member of the public, unless the item is on the posted agenda, except in the case

where an emergency is declared.

3.12  Voting Generally.

3.13

3.14

3.15

Policy 100.1

3.12.A. The vote on every motion shall be taken by roll call. Members shall not explain
their votes during roll call. Names of voters in favor and against shall be entered
in full upon the record. Any member of the Council may change his or her vote
prior to the next order of business.

3.12.B._Vote Required. The express approval of a majority of a quorum of the Council is
necessary for any Council decision, except when the City Charter requires
otherwise. The City Charter provides that at least three affirmative votes are
necessary to pass an ordinance.

Duty to Vote. When a question is taken, every member of the Council eligible to vote
shall vote unless a Councilor states a valid reason to abstain or has a direct conflict of
interest.

Reconsideration of Actions Taken. A Councilor who voted with the majority may move
for a reconsideration of an action at the same or the next following regular meeting.
Once a matter has been reconsidered, no motion for further reconsideration shall be
made without unanimous consent of the Council eligible to vote.

News Media. The provisions of this policy shall not be construed to prevent news media
representatives from performing their duties so long as the manner of performance is
not unreasonably disruptive of the meeting. Any member of the news media which
would like to receive copies of agendas or minutes of Council meetings shall request
such copies in writing. There may be a charge for such copies.

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 13 of 17



3.16

3.17

3.18

Section 4.

Policy 100.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH

COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

Standing Committees/Commissions/Boards.

3.16.A.

3.16.B.

The Budget Committee, as required by state law, shall be a standing committee.
It shall be subject to Local Budget Law, ORS 294.311-294.565.

The Planning Commission, required by state law, shall be a standing
commission. It is subject to Code Section 31.01 and any other ordinances and
resolutions which may amend it.

3.16.C. There are no standing boards.

Ad Hoc and Advisory Committees.

3.17.A.

3.17.B.

3.17.C.

The Council may establish ad hoc and/or advisory committees as needed. Each
such committee shall be established by ordinance or resolution for a specific
purpose. It shall have a deadline to accomplish its purpose and shall be
considered dissolved when its purpose is accomplished. If such a committee
needs additional time to complete its purpose it shall request additional time
from the Council. A Councilor may serve as liaison to a committee, but may not
chair or vote.

Unless otherwise required by resolution of the City Council, aAt the first

meeting of such a committee the members shall select a Chairperson, Vice-
Chairperson select-a-Seeretary, and set a meeting schedule. Written-minutesof

pesting: Minutes shall be kept of all committee meetings in accordance with

applicable law. The committee may select a Secretary to prepare minutes,

unless a staff member has been designated to do so by the City Manager. The

City Recorder or designee shall post meeting notices in accordance with Public
Meetings Law.

All meetings held by such committees are subject to the Oregon Public Meetings
Law ORS 192.610-192.690.

Appointing and Dissolving Committees, Commissions or Boards. The Council may

appoint and dissolve committees, commissions or boards as needed at their discretion.

FILLING CITY COUNCIL VACANCY. A vacancy in the Council shall be filled by
appointment by a majority of the Council. In this matter the Mayor is considered to have a vote (City
Charter, Chapter VII, Section 31). In the event of a Council member vacancy, the Council will follow the
recruitment and appointment process and vacancy procedure below:

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 14 of 17



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

4.1 Recruitment Process. Notice of the recruitment will be advertised through the use of a
news release, the City website, City social media channels, and any other outreach the
City deems helpful to reaching a broad and diverse spectrum of community members
who might be interested in applying.

4.2 Application Process. Candidates will be invited to complete a standard application with
at least two additional questions to be answered in a cover letter — 1) Why are you

interested in applying to serve on the City Council? 2) Do you have any experience

serving on City boards, committees or commissions? (Prior service is hot a requirement

for appointments.) If you do, please describe the experience, and your length of

eloped-byv-the CitvCouncHtogathe aith tha VALV, Y

service.guestion

Counecillorfeedbackto-the-City-Manager: Applicants will include a cover letter and

resume. Application materials are considered public records.

4.3 Screening Process.

4.3.A. If three or less applications are received, the Council will move directly to the

Interview Process.

4.3.B. If there are more than three candidates, the Council will reduce the list of

candidates to three as follows:

e Council members shall complete a ballot ranking their top three
candidates in order of their preference for first, second and third

choice. Under-voting is not permitted. First place votes will receive 3
points; second place votes will receive 2 points, and third place votes

will receive 1 point.

e The City Manager or designee shall tabulate the votes.

e The top three candidates with the highest totals shall be selected for
interviews.

e Ballots and votes are considered public records.

4.34  Interview Process. (Which may take place over multiple meetings.) AHapplicants-will-be

Policy 100.1 COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 15 of 17



4.4

Policy 100.1

CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

4.34 . BA.———Applications from those selected to interview will be published with the
Council meeting packet for a regular or special public meeting. Candidates will
be interviewed separately; those waiting for interviews will be asked to remain
outside the room. All candidates will be asked the same interview questions;
follow-up questions to clarify answers are permitted.

Voting process. After the conclusion of interviews, and any debate and discussion, the
Council will vote using the process outlined below (which may take place over multiple
meetings):

4.4.A. Each member of Council will complete a ballot ranking the candidates in order
of their preference for first, second, and third choice. Under-voting is not
permitted. The ballots are tabulated. If one candidate receives a majority of first
choice votes, that candidate shall be considered the remireewinning candidate.

At the conclusion of balloting, if successful, the Council will then make a motion

and hold a roll call vote to appoint the winning candidate to the vacant position.

4.4.B. If no candidate receives a majority of first choice votes a second ballot will be
held. The top twothree-vote-getters from the previous accerdingto-the
preferenceslisted-en-the-ballot wills advance to the second ballot;-the

candidate{s)lwhoreceived-thefewest first choicevotes-areeliminated. For the
second ballot, each member of the Council will vote for their first-and-second

choice candidate. If one candidate receives a majority of first choice votes on

the second ballot, that candidate shall be considered the reminee:winning

candidate.

4.4.BC. If there is a tie after three-two ballots, the Council can choose to completede
additional ballots at the same meeting or at another noticed public meeting.

4.4.ED. At the conclusion of balloting and determination of a remireewinning
candidate, if successful, the Council will then make a motion and hold a roll call
vote to appoint the reminee-winning candidate to the vacant position. In this

matter the Mayor is considered to have a vote. All ballots and votes are

considered public records.

COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 16 of 17



CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH
COUNCIL MEETING RULES AND PROCEDURES

Section 5. FILLING BUDGET COMMITTEE AND PLANNING COMMISSION VACANCIES.

A. Inthe event of a Budget Committee or Planning Commission member vacancy, the Mayor shall
nominate members for appointment by a majority of the Council, in accordance with the City
Charter, Chapter lll, Section 7.

B. The Mayor may choose to follow the recruitment and application process in Section 4.1 and 4.2
of these rules. Before proceeding with recruitment, the Mayor may first consider reappointment
of the incumbent.

Section 6. ETHICS. All members of the Council shall review and observe the requirements of state
ethics law. In addition to complying with state ethics law, all members of the council shall refrain from:

A. Disclosing confidential information.

B. Taking action which benefits special interest groups or persons at the expense of the City as a
whole.

C. Expressing an opinion contrary to the official position of the council without so saying.

D. Conducting themselves in a manner so as to bring discredit upon the government of the city.

Section 7. STATEMENTS TO THE MEDIA AND OTHER ORGANIZATIONS.

A. Representing City. If a member of the Council, to include the Mayor, appears as a
representative of the City before another governmental agency, the media or an
organization to give a statement on an issue, the member may only state the official
position of the City, as approved by a majority of the Council.

B. Personal Opinions. If a member of the Council, to include the Mayor, appears in their
personal capacity before another governmental agency, the media or an organization to
give a statement on an issue, the member must state they are expressing their own opinion
and not that of the City before giving their statement.

Section 8. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity of a section or subsection of this policy shall not affect the
validity of the remaining sections or subsections.

Policy 100.1 COUNCIL MEETING RULES & PROCEDURES Page 17 of 17



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-13

A RESOLUTION APPROVING SALMONBERRY TRAIL PREFERRED ALIGNMENT
IN ROCKAWAY BEACH

WHEREAS, the City of Rockaway Beach is currently working with partner
organizations and the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) to further
previous efforts to develop a 30% design for the proposed Rockaway Beach
segment of the Salmonberry Trail pathway; and

WHEREAS, in March of 2024, ODOT, along with City staff, selected Alta Planning +
Design, Inc. (“Alta”) to lead this effort; and

WHEREAS, on February 24, 2025, Alta’s public engagement campaign and
technical analysis culminated in the trail alignment recommendations detailed in
Exhibit A, Task 4.1 Alternatives Analysis Technical Memo # 2, and Exhibit B,
Salmonberry Trail, Rockaway Beach Segment Engagement Summary; and

WHEREAS, remaining work to finalize the 30% design for the Rockaway Beach

segment of the Salmonberry Trail pathway necessitates that efforts are focused on
a narrowed, defined, and approved project area.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF ROCKAWAY BEACH RESOLVES AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1.  The City of Rockaway Beach City Council hereby approves the preferred
alignment for the Salmonberry Trail Rockaway Beach segment, as
specified in attached Exhibit A.

Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THE 12t DAY OF
MARCH 2025.

APPROVED

Charles McNeilly, Mayor
ATTEST

Melissa Thompson, City Recorder

Resolution No. 2025-13 Page 1 of 1



Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

MEMORANDUM
To: Luke Shepard and Mary Johnson, City of Rockaway Beach, and Caroline Crisp, ODOT Region 2
From: Mike Rose and Sam Alig, Alta Planning + Design
Date: February 24, 2025
Re: Task 4.1 Alternatives Analysis Technical Memo #2
Introduction

There are two alternative alignments that were considered after conducting an analysis of the existing conditions and
from feedback garnered through public engagement activities. It is also important that the proposed alignment be
within the Port of Tillamook Bay ROW or on public property. The first is the east side of the Oregon Scenic Railroad
tracks and the second is the west side of the tracks. Different areas along the proposed alighments pose unique
challenges and opportunities and will ultimately help determine which side of the tracks is preferred for the
Salmonberry Trail in Rockaway Beach. It does not have to be exclusively on one side or the other, but keeping track
crossings to a minimum is a goal for safety. Trail alighment drawings and sections can be found in the Appendix of this
memo to help illustrate the preferred alighment.

Alternatives Analysis
West Side vs East Side

The west side of the tracks has been expressed as the preferred alignment by the Salmonberry Trail Foundation,
largely because it creates a buffer (the tracks) between pedestrians and cyclists and Highway 101 and minimizes
conflicts between automobiles turning on and off Highway 101. There is also a grade change between the tracks and
Highway 101 along much of the study location, which would require complex engineering and possibly expensive
solutions to reach ADA standards.

The main argument against having the path on the west side of the tracks, particularly in the southern portion, is the
perception that the trail is in the backyards of residents of Rockaway Beach. The Port of Tillamook Bay owns land 30’
on each side of the tracks and construction can legally take place. However, some residents currently use this space
as their own. This perceived taking of land from residents may trigger a public backlash of that alignment.
Constructing the path on the west side of tracks could cause political difficulties for the city and could delay
construction.

Alternatively, construction on the east side of the tracks could avoid public disapproval and help expedite the
construction of the trail. In some locations, the path would have to be constructed between the railroad and highway
which some may see as less scenic and less safe as you would lose the buffer of the tracks in between trail users and
highway 101. Designs that account for sight distance, warning signs and overall best practices for safer trails could
help to mitigate risk and improve safety. It also may make sense to have the trail on one side of the tracks or the
other in various locations because of the existing conditions or access to specific amenities.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 1 City of Rockaway Beach



Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

February 24, 2025

On February 19, 2025 ODOT, Alta and the City held an additional open house, both virtually and in person. This event
was specifically intended to reach the residents adjacent to the proposed trail South of South 3™ street. At this
meeting we outlined the scope of the project, the work to date, what is next, and opened discussion about a west vs
east alignment of the trail South of South 3" Street. We had 48 attendees at both the virtual meeting and in person
meeting combined. The general consensus at both meetings was that the westside provides a safer and better trail
experience.

Washington St to S 3" Ave
(See C101-C105 in Appendix)

This section of the trail has residential homes on the west side of Highway 101 and the railroad and has a long section
east of the highway that is forested. The main argument, like outlined above, for having the trail on the west side
would be that it is pervieved as being safer to have the path buffered from highway 101 with the rail line. In this
location this would require building the trail within about 12 feet of people’s backyards. Alternatively having the trail
on the east side would avoid this conflict. It would also make accessing the Rockaway Big Tree Trailhead much easier.
Having access to this trailhead has been expressed by members of the public as being important and the Big Tree
Trailhead is a draw to visitors of Rockaway Beach. After the open house on February 19, 2025 it was clear that the
residents prefer the west side alignment for the additional safety of the buffer from Highway 101. For these reasons
having the trail alignment on the west side of the tracks between Washington St and S 3™ Ave is preferred.

S 3rd Ave to S 1° Ave
(See C105-C106 in Appendix)

The conditions of both sides of the trail change considerably between S 3" Ave to the S 1%t Ave (see Section C).
Instead of residential homes running near the west side of the tracks, Miller Street begins and accommodates local
business. Routing the path on the west side would not require construction on land that may be perceived as private.
However, there is informal parking in places along Miller St for local businesses that may be impacted.

On the east side we have an expanded shoulder between Highway 101 between S 3" and S 2" and public parking
between S 2" Ave and S 1%t Ave (see C105), of which the city and members of the public have expressed a strong
desire to keep. If the path is to be located along Miller St it may be possible to use the expanded shoulder between S
1%t and S 2" Ave for additional formal parking spaces (See C105) increasing the number of parking spots in and near
Downtown Rockaway Beach. This would help mitigate the loss of informal parking that may be required to construct
the path on the west side along Miller and help please local business owners and visitors alike. With any option
parking will need to be altered but having the alignment on the west side would open the possibility to create even
more parking. For these reasons, the preferred alignment is on the west side of the tracks.

1%t Ave to N 3™ Ave
(See C106-C107 in Appendix)

After S 15t Ave the path reaches the Wayside and the Chamber of Commerce building, a retrofitted railroad caboose.
On the east side of the tracks there is parking similar to the block between S 2"¥ Ave and S 15t Ave (see C106). On the

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 2 City of Rockaway Beach



Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

February 24, 2025

west side there is the Caboose and then the wayside which serves as a public gathering space for events, parking, and
a central, prominent beach access point. As mentioned, removing parking on the east side of the tracks is not ideal,
especially in the heart of downtown. It has been suggested that the Caboose could be moved further into the
wayside, but this is not supported by the City of Rockaway Beach. It was also suggested to relocate the caboose to
another location, but this approach is not supported by the Chamber of Commerce.

Altering the wayside to accommodate a path or relocating the caboose would require gaining access from Oregon
Parks and Recreation, who own the land and lease the space to the City of Rockaway Beach. Relocating the caboose
to another location within the railroad right of way would require permission from the Port of Tillamook Bay and
would require moving utilities, greatly increasing overall project costs. Alternatively, the path could be split into two
sections (see C106 and Section D). One section would be between the caboose and the railroad, which could be used
by pedestrians and cyclists and could help increase access for riders of the scenic railroad. Another section could go
along the west side of the caboose while maintaining existing parking. This west segment will require Oregon Parks
and Recreation approval.

The split path is the preferred alignment in this section as it less costly to construct and could improve access to the
scenic railroad and the Wayside. It also maintains existing parking and does not require moving the caboose. The
downtown Rockaway Beach location of the trail could be a good area to add a trailhead with wayfinding signage and
overall Salmonberry Trail information, something expressed from the public as being desirable, although an exact
location has yet to be determined. At the northern end of the wayside is a creek which would require construction of
a bridge. This would need to happen on the west side of the railroad which would connect the path to Miller St, which
begins again at this location on the west side of the railroad and with informal parking on east side.

N 3" Ave to NE 19th Ave
(See C107-C113 in Appendix)

From N 3™ Ave to NE 19t Ave, the conditions do not change dramatically. Miller St is on the west side of the railroad
and highway 101 on the east side. For many of the reasons already outlined above, having the path on the west side
of the railroad is the most viable option. It is also the easiest to construct and most cost-effective option.

NE 19*" to NE 23" Ave
(See C113-C114 in Appendix)

The west side of the railroad in this location is a mix of informal roads connecting to residences and vegetation offset
from residences (see Section J). The east side of the railroad in the location looks very similar to the last section.
Routing the trail to the east side would avoid any conflict with residents, but would require the trail to cross the
railroad, which has safety implications. It would also mean losing the railroad as a buffer and putting pedestrians and
cyclists closer to the highway. The homes in this section are sparser and appear to be further back from the railroad
than in the Washington to S 3™ Ave section and may not require any perceived impact on private residences. The
informal roads may also be improved if a trail was to be combined with them and paved, improving access for
residents. For these reasons, the preferred alignment would be to have trail stay on the west side.

NE 23" Ave to Beach St
(See C113-C117 in Appendix)

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 3 City of Rockaway Beach



Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

February 24, 2025

After 23™ Ave, the west side of the railroad is mostly vegetation and sand all the way to the Pacific Ocean, the
highway on the east through this section is farther from the tracks than other areas. It could be feasible to build the
trail on the east side, however it would require crossing the railroad tracks which may be best to avoid. Shortly after
23" Ave there is a train bridge that crosses Crescent Creek (see Section K) where a pedestrian bridge would have to
be built/retrofitted to the existing trestle bridge. The ground is mostly sand in this location and would require infill to
make it structurally sound (see Section L). There is interest further down from the bridge to create access to Lake Blvd
which would provide access to the trail for Neah-Kah-Nie High School on the east side of Highway 101 (see C115). The
far end of the trail is near Manhattan Beach Recreation Site, an important access point that could be developed into a
trailhead (see C117 and Section M). The west side alignment is preferred, however, the costs associated with
stabilizing the soil to accommodate the trail may be high If so, an eastside option may be considered. The next phase
of design work will include survey and geotechnical investigation that will provide more information to make the
decision.

Appendix

See drawings and sections below.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 4 City of Rockaway Beach



Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

| | | |
=
(Q\|
o
—
LL
LL
)
1
(0 @)
o0
| +
| — - — — — — — | — - — — —
10+00 11+00 12+00 13+00 14+00 hw
—
)
OREGON COAST HWY 101 I
LL
prd
m <~
)§> —
‘_I’_’ 1T
z O
o

2 >
z <
: =

40 0 0 40 80

e e —

SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET

ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.

MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY: JPB

STA 10+00 TO STA 14+88
10% DESIGN a ta ROCKAWAY BEACH C101

I, NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
ouE  assiom 11 St S, St 200 | ot OR 57204 PLAN & PROFILE

SHEET 01 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

MATCH LINE - STA 14+88 - SEE C101

w 'y

2 , e - OREGON COAST HWY 101~ ,

-

B i o ————

=

JAV HLLS

v

18+00 19+00

22+00

24+00

MATCH LINE - STA 24+65 - SEE SHEET C103

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:
DATE:

SCALE:

JPB

JPB

AE
2.24.2025
AS SHOWN

MARK

DESCRIPTION

40 0 20 4 80
™ ™™ s ™" s—
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET

ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.

DATE INTIAL

10% DESIGN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

alta

101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204
503-230-9862 | altago.com

STA 14+88 TO STA 24+65

ROCKAWAY BEACH
SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
PLAN & PROFILE

C102

SHEET 02 OF 19




Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

| | | |
K
AN <
o o
< <
LL] » LL]
LL] O-é LL]
N T %)
I < I
m
O u <t
© Q <t
+ S MILLER ST < +
S S
wn
—- — : — — - — - . — — + — - — — — ' I
< 25+00 26+00 27+00 28+00 29+00 30+00 B N = B o i - - - B - — <
— 31+00 32+00 33+00 +00 —
n T n
[ :: [
=
LL] LL]
Z Z
— OREGON COAST HWY 101 ]
I I
O . 0 O
— = 9 —
< T )I> <
= 2 2 =
40 0 20 40 80
e e e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY: JPB

STA 24+65 TO STA 34+44
10% DESIGN a ta ROCKAWAY BEACH C103

I, NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
ouE  assiom 11 St S, St 200 | ot OR 57204 PLAN & PROFILE

SHEET 03 OF 19




Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

| | | |
=
™ ()]
2 S PACIFIC ST 2
@) @)
LLI o LL]
LLI m LL]
7 5 0
1 > 1
N " X
(a1
+ S MILLER ST < +
< S MILLER ST H <
™ A <
< | — - —| ] — : — — 1 — _ | _ | —~ jz':l-i <
31+00 32+00 33+00 ' ' - - —_1 - — : — — — — - — d
(|7) 34+00 35+00 36+00 37+00 38+00 39+00 4@00 l(/)
1 E 1
LLI = LL]
Z. prd
— —
OREGON COAST HWY 101
1T 1T
O w rUr’\ O
— il > —
= > > =
< >
M 5
40 0 20 40 80
e e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY: JPB

STA 34+44 TO STA 44+23
10% DESIGN a ta ROCKAWAY BEACH C104

I, NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
ouE  assiom 11 St S, St 200 | ot OR 57204 PLAN & PROFILE

SHEET 04 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

| | |
=
S PACIFIC ST
< ©
o o
s b wn
@ @
LL] LL]
LLI n n LL]
I o g I
> <
o™ r|<1 m g -—
¢ 3 <
<
<t ul <
<t S MILLER ST 7 O
< W <
CIT) 451_00 B ZRiﬂﬂ B B A7 : 00 B a ' - - I = —I + — — - ; L i (|7)
| + 48+00 49+00 50+00 51+00 52+00 53;00 g 541_00 I
Lu PROPOSED ADDITIONAL PARKING > Lu
Z Z
— —
2:) OREGON COAST HWY 101 2:)
= o =
< 5 @ <
= 2 ; >
m
z
m
40 0 20 40 80
e e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
PROJECT NO: MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL
DESIGNED B\.(' PR STA 44+23 TO STA 54+01
10% DESIGN a a ROCKAWAY BEACH C105
REVIEWED BY: AE
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
SCALE: AS SHOWN 101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204

503-230-9862 | altago.com

PLAN & PROFILE

SHEET 05 OF 19




Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

| | | |
=
()]
(@)
—
@) » N
— ? THE WAYSIDE —
—
LL] z ®)
LL m
T LL]
) LL]
0p)
LL] CHAMBER OF N MILLER ST
L S MILLER ST COMMERCE = I
U) > @
3 >
1 i L _ | _ . _ _ |
l_00 55+00 ¥ 00 - - = —! — 4 - — — — , — _  — " - o o
S 56+00 57+00 58+00 59+00 60+00 61+00 62+00 63+00  |& (0]
+ 1
< 2 <
m | l_
T
< z 0P
- = |
= LL]
2 OREGON COAST HWY 101 =
1 —
LL —l
prd % 1T
< z @)
— it ~
T 2 - z >
N
O z - : <
< m m i
40 0 20 40 80
e e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY: JPB

STA 54+01 TO STA 63+79
10% DESIGN a ta ROCKAWAY BEACH C106

I, NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY

SCALE: AS SHOWN 101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204

503-230-9862 | altago.com P LAN & P RO F I L E

SHEET 06 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

=
(0 @)
S S
s b s
O
(u'j N MILLER ST - - - — o |w
L - " T e 72+00 LL
N | - " T a0 69+00 n
| R _— — Y ' 67+00 I
(ﬁ 64+00 65+00 66+00 g o0
N ga To)
& < X
Ll
- OREGON COAST HWY 101 CUI? N
<C w <
— = —
n z n
1 :: I
LL] = LLJ
Z ) Z
| % ]
1 g T
O < O
> =
< <
= S
40 0 20 40 80
I e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
PROJECT NO: MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL
DESIGNEDEY: JPB o STA63+79 TO STA 73+58
10% DESIGN ROCKAWAY BEACH C107
REVIEWED BY: AE
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
SE ASSHOWN 101 W . S 200 | o, OR 57204 PLAN & PROFILE

07 OF 19




Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

| | | |
=
N (@)
o o
s b
O @)
LL] N MILLER ST LLJ
LLI LLI
(D - 77+00 U)
- -
! S — ——1—0—‘ - — 75+00 76+00 N |
(0@ 74+0 S (0 @)
@) 8 o™
+ < +
™ L ™
N %) o0
< OREGON COAST HWY 101 N <
Z
— - —
) T n
I - :: I
LL] z = = LL]
Z ‘l\; = Z
1 > z 1
r<n m
1 1
> >
40 0 20 40 80
e e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY: JPB

STA 73+58 TO STA 83+38
10% DESIGN a ta ROCKAWAY BEACH C108

I, NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
ouE  assiom 11 St S, St 200 | ot OR 57204 PLAN & PROFILE

SHEET 08 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

Ik
Z
(00)
=
= > o
2 i =
Z
O 3
LI z ER ST (I.I-j
z N MILL _ - —
(LIJJ') m I —— + - it —— 7 ow00 93+00 CLH
‘ - —t u 90+00
: | ——— — 7 700’ T T T 8800 89+00 ' !
— e . 87+ Ll ©
A 35+00 %01 5 -
+ 2 c-j')
(o9 Ll O
o0 L - |o®
- +
< w <
|— OREGON COAST HWY 101 % 8 |_
7)) z (7))
1 :: 1
LL] = LL]
Z <
1 1
T T
O O
et =
< <
= =
40 0 20 40 80
e T ——
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
PROJECT NO: MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL
DESIGNED B\.(' PR STA 83+38 TO STA 93+16
y 10% DESIGN a a ROCKAWAY BEACH C109
DRAWN BY: JPB
REVEWEDY: A NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
DATE 224,205 SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
SCALE: AS SHOWN 101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204

503-230-9862 | altago.com

PLAN & PROFILE SHEET 09 OF 19




Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

| | | |
=
Z
(@) 9 A
7 ~—
2 > ) wa
®) 5 @)
LL]
m N MILLER ST L]
N N
1 L L | — L - — 4 - — — — : — — = - — N — + —! — + — — : — — — — — !
© 94400 95+00 96+00 97+00 98+00 99+00 100+00 101+00 102+00 " 100 LO
— 3 @)
+ 2 T
< o\
L
8 m o
n N
<L L

- OREGON COAST HWY 101 Z <
O T =
o 7))
1 <§E |
'-éJ LLI
< Z
— ]
5 T
” e

40 0 20 40 80

e —

SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET

ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY: JPB

STA 93+16 TO STA 102+95
10% DESIGN a ta ROCKAWAY BEACH C110

I, NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
ouE  assiom 11 St S, St 200 | ot OR 57204 PLAN & PROFILE

SHEET 10 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

| | |
=
Z
(@) - i z AN
\ = ?\_\ S <
@ 2 Z T O
LLJ z 2 LLJ
LL m LL
N N
| |
O N MILLER ST n AN
? S i
m
N - — —| - - — — — : — — = b — + — — - - : - — — — — | — f ~ — NN
2 )3+00 104+00 105+00 106+00 107+00 108+00 109+00 110+00 111+00 112+00 (“,J) :
<C z <C
— - —
0p) S 0p)
1 < 1
LL OREGON COAST HWY 101 = LL]
Z Z
— —
I zZ I
O 1 O
— 3 PROPOSED CROSSING —
< > <
= = =
40 0 20 40 80
e e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
PROJECT NO: MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL
DESIGNED B\.(- P8 STA 102+95 TO STA 112+72
' 0]
10% DESIGN a a ROCKAWAY BEACH C111
e s NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
SCALE: Aé S.HOWN 101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204

503-230-9862 | altago.com

PLAN & PROFILE

SHEET 11 OF 19




Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

| | | |
o
zZ
< zZ
zZ
~— _E_‘ =S E = % o
— par o o 3 N —
- 1 9 > 2 g |-
@) Z > > r O
" 2 5 = z

LLI i m @
LLI L
N N MILLER ST N

1 I
AN " ~
I — - — — - : — - + — ' — + —! — — — : — — — — - — | — — 10 _ O
+ 113+00 114+00 115+00 116+00 117+00 118+00 119+00 120+00 121+00 1222@0 +
AN ] Q\
~— m AN
< ('? <

(HN]
= = -
7)) OREGON COAST HWY 101 O P
<

I < I
LL L
Z Z
—1 -
L L
< <

40 0 20 40 80
e O —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY: JPB

STA 112+72 TO STA 122+51
10% DESIGN a ta ROCKAWAY BEACH C112

I, NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
ouE  assiom 11 St S, St 200 | ot OR 57204 PLAN & PROFILE

SHEET 12 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

| |
=
m z
N © N <
) w -I-I :‘_l ) w
~— > T ~—
O 2 > O
LL LL
LL N MILLER ST LL]
) )
1 1
Lo — — - — : - - — + — — — — : — - — — - | — —I QO — — J N
C-I\-l 123+00 124+00 125+00 126+00 127+00 128+00 129+00 130+00 131+00 @ 132+00 C-I\-l
L
AN m ™
< ('? <
< ”% <
— - —
D OREGON COAST HWY 101 O n
1 <§E 1
LL LL
prd prd
— —
1T z 1T
O T O
— = —
< > <
= o =
40 0 20 40 80
e e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:
DATE:

SCALE:

JPB

JPB

AE
2.24.2025
AS SHOWN

MARK

DESCRIPTION

DATE INTIAL

10% DESIGN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

alta

101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204
503-230-9862 | altago.com

STA 122+51 TO STA 132+27

ROCKAWAY BEACH C113
SALMONBERRY PATHWAY

PLAN & PROFILE SHEET 13 OF 10




Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

| | | |
=
S
™M N O
— o —
< O <
@) Z @)
m
LLI LL]
LLI LL]
0)) 0p)
I I
N n O
AN | - — | — - + — - + — — — - — — — — — - — | — — — - - — - 18 - —H O
i 133+00 134+00 135+00 136+00 137+00 138+00 139+00 140+00 141+00 & 142+ +
N = o\
30 L <
D w UI) <
Ll
<L z <L
= > =
O
U,) OREGON COAST Hwy 101 = Uu)
=
LLI LL]
Z. prd
— —
z
1T = 1T
O N O
~ 3 ~
<C > <C
= m =
40 0 20 40 80
e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY: JPB

STA 132+27 TO STA 142+05
10% DESIGN a ta ROCKAWAY BEACH C114

I, NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
ouE  assiom 11 St S, St 200 | ot OR 57204 PLAN & PROFILE

SHEET 14 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:
DATE:

SCALE:

JPB

JPB

AE
2.24.2025
AS SHOWN

10% DESIGN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

alta

101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204

503-230-9862 | altago.com

=
< ©
~ -—
DN -—
O O
L] LI
LI LI
N %)
! I
O N <
? [0_0 T B B 146I+ﬂﬂ B B 147I+ﬂﬂ B B 148|+E() 14—Q|+ﬂﬂ g ] ?
N f = ~—
<t U o O
-~ @ ~
< = <
- z o
(7)) o
| LEE |
LLI OREGON COAST HWY 101 L
Z Z
] 1
T T
@) @
— =
< PROPOSED CROSSING <
= =
40 0 20 40 80
e e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.

STA 142+05 TO STA 151+84

ROCKAWAY BEACH C115
SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
PLAN & PROFILE e 15 or 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

v

O N
s s
O O
LL] LL]
LL] LL]
Ul) - — — + — — + — — : — — 2
152+00 153+00 154+00 155+00 1
ﬂ' Ll OO
0 3 N~
+ g +
s n s
0 3 ©
< y <
= = =
0p) OREGON COAST HWY 101 5 9p)
1 < 1
Ll =~ Ll
Z Z
] ]
I I
O O
= =
< <
s s
40 0 20 40 80
I e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
PROJECT NO: MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL
DESIGNEDBY:  JPB STA 151+84 TO STA 161+78
10% DESIGN a a ROCKAWAY BEACH C116
REVIEWED BY: AE
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
SCALE: AS SHOWN 101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204

503-230-9862 | altago.com

PLAN & PROFILE

SHEET 15 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\2024\2024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-PLAN.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM  Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

MATCH LINE - STA 161+78 - SEE C116

163+00

1S HOv3d

164+00

164162

OREGON COAST HWY 101

40 0 20 40 80
I e —
SCALE PLAN SCALE FEET
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.

PROJECT NO: MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL

DESIGNED BY: JPB 0 STA 161+78 TO STA 164+62

10% DESIGN ROCKAWAY BEACH C117

e NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY

SCALE: Aé S.HOWN 101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204

503-230-9862 | altago.com

PLAN & PROFILE

SHEET 16 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\202412024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-DETAILS.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

MILLER
ST

¢
|

11" TRAVEL LANE |
(NB ONE-WAY)

SHARED USE
PATH

¢
|

|
8' PATH

EXIST
RAILROAD

|
|
8.5 = 8.5

12' DRIVE LANE

16' DIAGONAL
PARKING 3

' SIDEWALK

EXIST
RAILROAD

10'

—

\

-

— —

HWY
101

¢

|

o4

SHOULDER
1" CURB —

C.S3RD AVE to S 1ST AVE

STA. 45+00.00 TO 55+50.00

SHARED USE
PATH

¢
|

20' BRIDGE

PRIVATE

PROPERTY EXISTING VEGETATION
—t e

—_—— — -

10" PATH
5 | 5

!

—

!

4l
PHOULDER
[t T—

o

HWY
101

€

|
ol

B.S MILLER ST BRIDGE

STA. 28+70 .00 TO 29+10.00

SHARED USE
PATH

¢
|
|

10-12' PATH

EXIST
RAILROAD

¢
|
|

i 8.%5' 8.5'

TRAVEL LANES

A. WASHINGTON ST to S 3RD AVE

STA. 10+00.00 TO 45+00.00

o _:_5:::|::;E|:|_ .

20'-21'
EXISTING 10'
VEGETATION SHOULDER

TRAVEL LANES

HWY
101

¢

|
ou

TRAVEL LANES

®

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:
DATE:

SCALE:

JPB

JPB

AE
2.24.2025
AS SHOWN

MARK

ISSUE
DESCRIPTION DATE

INTIAL

10% DESIGN

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204
503-230-9862 | altago.com

SHEET TITLE

ROCKAWAY BEACH
SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
TYPICAL SECTIONS

SHEET NO.

CD201

SHEET

17 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\202412024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-DETAILS.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

SHARED USE

MILLER PATH EXIST VY
ST RAILROAD 101
¢
¢ | ¢ ¢
| | | |
' | 1" i | 17 2w
_ SBTRAVELLANE _ | NBTRAVELLANE _ _ 10-12 l:PATH o 8.5 _ 8.5 SHOULDER . TRAVEL LANES B
| |
| 2.0% |
-~ oo ooIoCoToooo-----og e o 3L [ S
F.N1ST AVE to N 5TH AVE
STA. 58+10.00 TO 74+00.00
SHARED USE
PATH EXIST HWY
RAILROAD 101
¢ ¢
| ¢ |
- 15' BRIDGE _ | |
! i 31' EXISTING 24"
< 10' PATH L 8.5 i 8.5' . DRIVE AILSE AND SHOULDER . TRAVEL LANES _
25| 5 | 5 |25 |
B B |
2 0% |
MAX | L
———————————— ~__ : , —mEss==Ss C—————-—-— - - C--Z-Z”--C-Z-ZZC”=-
E. CABOOSE STATION TO
N MILLER ST BRIDGE
STA. 57+80.00 TO 58+10.00
SHARED USE SHARED USE
PATH (SB) PATH (NB) EXIST HWY
¢ ¢ RAILROAD 101
| | ¢ ¢
| | | |
; = |' 14' DIAGONAL 7' 24
6' PATH CABOOSE AND RAMP 6' PATH 8.5 = 8.5 15' DRIVE LANE PARKING SHOULDER TRAVEL LANES
| | 1' CURB |
% | | — | —— |
20% | 2.0% i
L l e — r_____‘:&::::ﬁl__‘\j: __________________________ al - - - - ———— —
N
D. CABOOSE STATION @
STA. 55+50.00 to 57+80.00
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
PROJECT NO: MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL
DESIGNED BY: JPB
0
10% DESIGN ROCKAWAY BEACH CD202
REVIEWED BY: AE
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
) 101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204
SCALE: AS SHOWN 503—230-9gl6n2 | altago.com " TYPICAL SECTI ONS SHEET 18 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\202412024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-DETAILS.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

SHARED USE

PATH EXIST
RAILROAD
¢
| i
| :
' |
NEIGHBORHOOD 20' SHARED USE ROAD 8.5 | 8.5 HWY 101
—el} et} l el el -
|
L 2.0%
————————————————— ~ S O
|. SHARED-USE ROAD
N MILLER ST
STA.125+00.00 TO 134+50.00
SHARED USE
MILLER DATH ST oy
ST . RAILROAD 101
t | ¢ ¢
| | | |
20 6-8' FJ i i
B TRAVEL LANES _ SHOULDER _, 10 iATH 8.5 BB 8.5 _ ~ TRAVEL LANES _
| : |
! | !
| |
l‘ | 2.0% !
c____~_ -~ -~~~ _ -~ _“"__’"""’—"—_7T——"——"——— - | MAXj ——— T =====a _________———————_—_—:_—::::::J_—II::::::::—:1
H. N 13TH AVE to NW 19TH AVE
STA. 112+40.00 TO 125+00.00
SHARED USE
MILLER PATH EXIST HWY
ST . RAILROAD 101
¢ | & ¢
| 9 | | |
12" | PARALLEL FJ | ol
. SBTRAVELLANE |, = PARKNG _, =~ 10 iATH . 8.5 i 8.5 _ ~ TRAVEL LANES _
| | |
| i |
l 2.0% :
:::::::::::—::::::::::J | MAXj ———EEe——=Sa - ] __:::::::::::£::::::::::::]
N
G. N5THAVE toN 13TH AVE @
STA. 74+00.00 TO 112+40.00
ISSUE SHEET TITLE SHEET NO.
PROJECT NO: MARK DESCRIPTION DATE INTIAL
DESIGNED BY: MWS
o 10% DESIGN ROCKAWAY BEACH CD203
REVIEWED BY: AE
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
SCALE: AS SHOWN 101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204

503-230-9862 | altago.com

TYPICAL SECTIONS

SHEET 19 OF 19




Dwg filename: N:\Shared\PROJECTS\202412024.046 Rockaway Beach, OR Beach Path\CAD\01_Plans\2024.046_C-DETAILS.dwg Last saved by: SamAlig Plot date: 2/24/2025 2:55 PM Plotstyle table: ALTA NCS Standard.stb

Resolution 2025-14 - Exhibit A

8.5'

K. CRESCENT LAKE BRIDGE

STA. 139+60.00 TO 140+40.00

SHARED USE

EXIST PATH
RAILROAD

¢ t

| :
' 8.5 ~ 10PATH . HWY 101

A

Y

—_— J:EI:::::_j_:! _____

Y
\

—
~l}

K. NW 23RD AVE TO BEACH ST

STA.127+50.00 TO 134+65.00

SHARED USE
PATH EXIST
RAILROAD

¢
' i
| :

EXISTING = |

VEGETATION 10' PATH 8.5' = 8.5' HWY 101
—l} et} i e} el —
|
L 2.0%
_______ | MAX B [ R
- L | o T T T T~

J. NW 20TH AVE TO NW 23RD AVE

STA.127+50.00 TO 134+65.00

SHARED USE
EXIST PATH
RAILROAD ¢
¢ |
! B 15' BRIDGE . 37' TO EDGE OF HWY 101
| !
: 9.5' 10' PATH
'< |t . —
2.5 5 |5 _| 2.5
W M
2.0%
R g MAX
[ ]
CRESCENT CREEK

®

PROJECT NO:
DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:
REVIEWED BY:
DATE:

SCALE:

MWS

MWS

AE
2.24.2025
AS SHOWN

MARK

DESCRIPTION

ISSUE

DATE

INTIAL

10% DESIGN

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

alta

101 SW Main St., Ste. 2000 | Portland, OR 97204
503-230-9862 | altago.com

SHEET TITLE

ROCKAWAY BEACH
SALMONBERRY PATHWAY
TYPICAL SECTIONS

SHEET NO.

CD204

SHEET 19 OF 19




Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

alta

To: ODOT, City of Rockaway Beach

From: Alta Planning + Design

Date: February 24, 2025

Re: Salmonberry Trail, Rockaway Beach Segment Engagement Summary
Introduction

Public engagement for the Rockaway Beach section of the Salmonberry Trail was conducted between June 3, 2024
and February 19, 2025. This included two tabling events, one survey which garnered over 150 responses from visitors
and residents, and two public meetings targeting interested parties (one virtual, one in-person). The intent of these
public engagement events is to inform residents and visitors about the project and to gather their input into the
design of the multi-use trail. The following table summarizes engagement activities cultivated through this
engagement process and results are summarized for each event and survey below. Individual survey responses will be
included at the end of this document.

Table 1: Public Engagement Methods

Tabling Event Rockaway Beach Summer Picnic attendees June 27, 2024

Tabling Event Rockaway Beach 4" of July Celebration attendees July 4, 2024

Survey General public including residents and visiting non-residents June 3, 2024 — Aug. 15,
2024

Virtual & In-Person General public including residents and other non-resident February 19, 2025

Interested Parties Meetings | stakeholders

Tabling Event Feedback

The project team gathered feedback through two separate tabling events. The tabling events were centered around
getting input from the public on the proposed Salmonberry Trail alignment in Rockaway Beach and how and why
residents and visitors might use the trail and what factors might be a cause for concern.

Rockaway Beach Summer Picnic

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.




Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

For the Summer Picnic event people were encouraged to participate by adding stickers to a sticker board under

certain themes or writing in concerns or opinions on how they might use the trail. Participants were also able to write

on a map and leave comments as they see fit. Most comments left by individuals, both residents and non-residents,

expressed an interest in using the trail for recreational purposes or commuting. There were concerns over ensuring

the trail would improve accessibility and improving access to destinations. Additionally, there were locations on the

map where folks described parking conditions and areas with greater demand for parking. The following themes and

responses were recorded:

Accessibility — Many respondents expressed the need for the trail to improve accessibility through ADA
accessibility, safe crossings of roads and the railroad, and improving access to various places within the city.
Trail material — Some respondents expressed the need for a paved trail over gravel as gravel is more difficult
for specific users to use, such as runners or people using mobility devices.

1 respondent (resident) stated they would use the trail for commuting.

2 respondents (1 resident and 1 visitor) stated they would use the trail for running errands.

5 respondents (3 visitors, 2 residents) stated they would use the trail for exercise or relaxation.

o Many comments left in the “other” category stated they would use the trail for recreation or
exercise including dog walking, jogging, using the trail with out-of-town guests and one comment
proposing the trail could be used by the local high school cross country team for training.

3 respondents (2 visitors, 1 resident) stated they would use the trail to access the beach or other locations.
Another comment in the “other” category stated an interest in commuting to church on the trail.

See below for tabling materials.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

alta

Figure 1: Tabling Event 1 Results

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 3



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

alta

Figure 2: Tabling Event 1 Results

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 4



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

4' of July Celebration

The same methods used for gathering feedback from the public were used for the 4% of July celebration as for the

Summer Picnic, however, less participation overall was observed. The following themes and responses were

recorded:

1 respondent expressed not wanting to use their cars as being encouragement to use the trail.

1 respondent stated wanting to use the trail for exercise and relaxation.

1 respondent expressed concern over safety for pedestrians using the trail from bikes and scooters, both
electric and non-electric.

1 respondent stated that weather would be a limiting factor for them using the trail.

1 respondent stated they would use the trail to commute to and from school.

1 respondent stated they would use the trail for running errands.

1 respondent stated they would use the trail for commuting to and from work.

3 respondents stated they would use the trail to access the beach and other locations in town.

1 local resident verbally expressed concern that the trail would impact or reduce parking at his home along
Miller Street.

See below for tabling materials.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

alta

Figure 3: Tabling Event 2 Results

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 6



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

Survey Results

The project team created a survey that launched on June 3, 2024 and ended on Aug. 15, 2024. There were 158
responses to the public survey. The survey was advertised during tabling events and was published in a local
newspaper. Many of the responses came from visitors to Rockaway Beach, but a moderate number of Rockaway
Beach residents and business owners also responded. Below are themes that came from responses to the survey:

- About a third of respondents were visitors, a third were residents of the surrounding area and a third were
either residents or business owners in Rockaway Beach.

- A common theme from residents was that they would use the trail to run errands, as well as for accessing
beaches and other destinations in area.

- Many respondents would use the trail for relaxation and exercise.

- Some, but few instances of people claiming to use the trail for commuting to and from work.

- Many respondents would use trail by bicycle and for walking.

- Many respondents stated they used a mobility device.

- A major consideration expressed is having the trail be paved with many respondents stated they would not
use the trail at all if not paved.

- Alarge number of people with safety concerns in relation to proximity of trail to road and the need for a
buffer if trail is to be in between road and railroad tracks.

- Other safety concerns mentioned we the importance of having safe road and railroad crossings and having
clear signage and wayfinding.

- Some mention of the need for seating along trail, especially by older respondents and those using mobility
devices.

- Some mention of concern of trail being used by houseless community and drug use on or adjacent to trail.

- Some mention of respondents wanting water fountains along the trail.

- Some respondents said they would like to have bike racks available and that they be visible.

Some key takeaways from the survey are that the trail would be split somewhat evenly by bicyclists and walkers alike
and with many people using mobility devices on the trail. Concerns largely focused on safety, particularly for the need
to have safe crossings and for the trail to have a substantial buffer between the trail and Highway 101. Additionally,
many people commented that having access to beaches and popular destinations in town was important, as well as
for having signage and wayfinding along the path.

See Appendix A for all survey responses

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

alta

Appendix A

Q1 How much do you think you or your family would use this pathway

once it was built?

Answered: 156  Skipped: 2

MNever

Occasionally
(ex. when
visiting...

Every manth

reneek -
Every day .

Other (please
specify)

0% 10% 20% 20% 40% 50%  60%  70% 80% 0%  100%

ANSWER CHOICES

Never

Occasionally (ex. when visiting Rockaway Beach, on vacation, on occasional weekends, etc.)
Every month

Every week

Every day

Other (please specify)
TOTAL

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 8

RESPONSES
9.62%

48.08%

12.18%

14.74%

8.33%

7.05%

15

75

19

23

13

11

156



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

alta

Q2 How would you or your family plan to use the pathway? (Select all that
apply)

Answered: 151  Skipped: 7

Commuting to
and from work

Traveling to
and from school

Running,
regular errands
(ex. market,...

To access the
beach or other
recreation...

For exercise
or relaxation

Other (please
specify)

0% 10% 20% 20% 40% 50%  60%  70% 80% 0% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Commuting to and from work 4.64% 7
Traveling to and from school 1.99% 3
Running regular errands (ex. market, library, etc.) 25.17% 38
To access the beach or other recreation locations 50.33% 76
For exercise or relaxation 79.47% 120
Other (please specify) 17.22% 26

Total Respondents: 151

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 9



alta

Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

Q3 What travel methods would you and your family be likely to use on this

pathway?

Answered: 150  Skipped: 8

Walking,

including use

of a mobilit...
N bicyae -

By scooter or
skateboard

Other (please
specify)

0% 10% 20% 30% A40% 50% 60%

ANSWER CHOICES

Walking, including use of a mobility device
By hicycle

By scooter or skateboard

Other (please specify)
TOTAL

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 10

T0%

80%

90% 100%

RESPONSES
52.67%

36.67%

0.67%

10.00%

79

55

15

150



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

Q4 What would encourage you to use the pathway? (For example, if the path were
paved, fewer railroad crossings, navigational signage, amenities such as water
fountains or bike racks, etc.)

Answered: 140 Skipped: 18

e Separation from Highway 101, bike racks when in commerce areas, navigational signage with info on
connector trails

e bike racks

e less people using it

e thisis a rail trail . It requires minimal signage, maintenance, traffic controls. or surfacing...just removal of ties
and obstructions and covering with finr gravel, possibly pavement, like the Banks Vernonia Trail

e Paved, safe, restroom would be great

e Going for a walk

o Nothing. It's a waste of money

e | typically use more unmaintained trails. If the trail is heavily advertised, frequented by tourists or feels like a
dog park, I'm highly unlikely to use it at all.

e Paved

e All of the above would be great!

e Beautiful rocks!!

e No more train

e Make sure it is level, flat, hanicapped accessible and well maintained.

o ?

e Paved, bike racks, fewer crossings

e | would use the trail the most if it is: smoothly paved, wide enough for bikers and walkers to pass each other,
has many bike racks stationed at various locations, water fountains, clean restrooms, a bike repair station,
easy crossing across Highway 101, ample parking at trail head, the chamber caboose is moved from
obstructing the trail in any way, it eventually links to other cities.

e Paved pathway Portapotty

e Paved, signs to mark mileage from X to Y so not to get beyond my abilities to return back safely, bathroom
facilities at reasonable intervals.

e Paved, water fountains would be nice. Dog poop bag stations and trash cans.

e Navigational signage water

e Dirt trail next to paved trail

e Water fountains, benches, bike racks at beach access points, paved paths

e Paved, wild flowers up and down the path. Benches for the elderly.

e All of the above

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e | don’t think | would need encouragement, but | think clear signage is important.

o If it was dog friendly.

e smooth paving (not brick), goes to/from the high school

e Bike racks and TRASH CANS!!!!Please Please Please consider trash cans.

e Bench on occasion to rest my old body and back

e Paved, bike racks, signage

e Dog bags and disposal bin

e Water fountains for humans and dogs, sheltered walking space (guardrail?), dog leash holders

e Knowing about it.

e Nice clear, lever walkway

e Safety. Scenery. Solitude.

e Paved pathway

e Wayfinding, Signage and water

e Ifit's there we will use it.

e pavedis# 1! fewer railroad crossings, navigational signage, amenities such as water fountains or bike racks
are secondary but nice

e Ifit connects to a longer trail north of Rockaway

e Easy access and regular maintenance.

e DOG FRIENDLY

e | don't see this pathway being done in my lifetime. It's just a way for certain few to make lots of money.

e Paving

e No bicycles

e Fewer RR crossings

e Theareaisfine as it is. No pathway needed.

e Paved pathway for bikes, frequent crossings to access beach, bike racks, vehicle parking area somewhere
along the trail. We travel from Manzanita to many coastal recreation spots and need somewhere safe to
leave the vehicle.

e Paved, ample width where more traffic, minimal RR crossings with helpful signage/cautions, "next water,
bathroom in xx miles" signs, yes have bike racks at appropriate spots. historic/scenic etc stop points.

e Trash cans at regular intervals to keep the trail clean; accessible from Big Tree to NKN high school; lanes for
slow and fast traffic

e Pavement

e Paved

e connect with other segments to allow a long walk or ride, to ride needs to be paved, free from the tourist
crush stepping into your path, bike racks to stop along the route

e Easy walking or biking surface. Limited traffic and noise. Access to nature.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e Paved path and water fountains, navigational signage

e Paved for ADA use.

e Shops along the way.

e Signs showing distance. No potholes

e navigational signage

e Theroute, it’s all about the route connect I’'mions for me. If the trail connects the high school/Nedonna to
the wayside and downtown and all the way down to the big tree walk, I'll be using it all the time.

e Just having a walkable path off of Highway 101 along that corridor would encourage me to use the pathway,
but having pavers or a permeable concrete would be an added incentive.

e Paved, smooth surface, water fountains, restrooms, bike racks, bike lockers, picnic tables, divided walking
and biking markers, lightening.

e Must be accessible for mobility challenged; level and flat; way finding signage; bike racks; water fountains for
humans and dogs.

e A paved path would make it more accessible and bike racks would be helpful.

e Universally accessible to all persons - including those with mobility issues. Trash cans and accessible
bathroom

e Paved

e Safe crossings, reducing conflict with traffic

e Lighting, signage, safe crossings with vehicles (make vehicles yield to trail traffic)

o Navigational signage is a good one!

e Just being out in nature would be my encouraging factor.

e access to bathrooms

e there is TOO much gravel, and potholes on the bike lanes through Rockaway making riding dangerous with all
the side traffic entering 101

e pavement is key, and water fountains would be an excellent bonus!

e railroad crossings are always a concern on a bicycle. vehicle incursions are my biggest concern. surface type is
not as important (graded surface, paved, etc...).

e paved path

e A paved path would be the biggest factor. Bike racks and water fountains near public destinations would be
nice. Signs to public beach access would be good.

e Paved and signage

e Paved roads safely away from auto traffic.

e Ease of access to the trail, scenery, and available parking at trailheads.

e Ease of entryway.

e Paved, restrooms at certain stages.

e Less contact with vehicles.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e Paved

e Surface type does not matter, as long as it is sustainable and does not require constant maintenance.
Excessive maintenance would require closing or detouring users during this time. Good wayfinding would be
important and would benefit locals and visitors.

e amenities, path width, doggie bag stations/dog areas

e Aclean and homeless free path would be t

e Unsure

e access from public transportation - the ability to take a bus to various points on the trail. if not on both ends,
at least on one. Additionally, amenities on either end. A grocery store, coffeeshop, camp site. Water
fountains are really needed as well.

e large trailhead parking connecting to the trail.

o Paved. Signage.

e Water Fountains and occasional restrooms

o Paved; wide enough for passing

e carfree

e Paved; wide enough for both bikes and pedestrians; bike racks; clear wayfinding signage to destinations;
strong and safe connections to destinations and local businesses

e Paved; wide enough for both bikes and pedestrians; bike racks; clear wayfinding signage to destinations;
strong and safe connections to destinations and local businesses

e nothing

e  Qur family likes to bike and walk together in a group, so a path that allows for that would be great. Also trash
cans and solar lighting.

e no cars, good crossings, lighting, secure convenient and visisible bike parking, not bumpy

e Easy access for walkers and places to stop and enjoy the view. Places to eat packed meals.

e Separation from motor vehicles. If you build it, | will come

o If the path is wide enough for side-by-side bike riding and crossings are comfortable.

e Less rain

e Paving

e paved or smooth surface clear of debris. 1/2 for walkers, 1/2 for bikes. Research Amsterdam for safe
separation for walkers, bikers and vehicles please.

e Pavement

e navigational railway signage & 40 coffees.

e Reasonable night lighting

e Water fountains, and gradual slopes

e Anything is better than riding on 101

e Ifit had permeable pavers, safe ways to cross 101, more community space instead of parking nearby

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e Security

e | would useit all

e Move it off the highway

e Paved or compacted gravel surface, clear navigational signs

e Bike racks, paved. Signage is important for those who don’t live here. We do. Directional signage is critical
and interpretative signage would add tremendously to the experience.

e Linking to longer routes

e Rest room and water fountains

e Please pave this pathway. | want to use it to bike from Banks to the beach on this entire trail.

e Nothing

e Paved for strollers

o Mounted police every quarter mile

e If the path were paved, fewer railroad crossings, navigational signage, amenities such as water fountains or
bike racks, etc.)

e Parking nearby

e If it was away from US101, the farther the better

e Paved. Wide enough for 2 way or passing.

e Pavement for people on bicycles, in wheelchairs, scooters, skates, and either pavement or compressed
crushed granite for people walking.

e Two things: 1. Smooth path with minimal or no obstructions where a walker might trip. 2. Few interactions
with vehicles or at least making it obvious how pedestrians and drivers are to behave with low confusion and
low stress.

e  bringing a picnic lunch

e No car traffic, crossings

e Paved with bike racks...

e All of the above.

e None needed. Simply getting off the HWY is enough

e comfortable and easy rolling. Good surface quality and separation between people walking and biking.

e line for walking and line for biking, both directions

e separation from highway, fewer street crossings

e Availability of benches to rest on. We are both seniors over 80.

e Paved, have good, protected bike connections at each end, free from car traffic. Bike racks, and maybe bike
signals at any signalized intersections

e Signage, safe crossings

e Paved would be awesome, we love riding rail trails and good navigation and information signage is always a
plus. Really enjoy the history of the area.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e Good connection to the transit system. Available bike racks.

Q5 What (if any) concerns or conditions would limit your use of the pathway? (For
example, if the path were not paved, railroad crossings, proximity to the railroad
tracks / highway, etc.)

Answered: 139 Skipped: 19

e My biggest concern is proximity to highway 101 and hazards that would be present if there was no barrier or
spacing between the trail and the roadway. | am not concerned about whether the path is paved or not, so
long as the path is flat without too many stumbling hazards. | am less concerned about the railroad because
of how slowly the train moves.

e  car crossings

e Too many people

e fees, barriers, threats by ignorant neighbors

e Unsafe (homeless camps, drug activity)

o Ifitis not paved | would not use it. As you get older you need a smooth surface for walking.

e |t's going to ruin a nice place by adding a bunch of people and garbage. It's a fragile ecosystem that doesn't
need all that traffic

e | typically use more unmaintained trails. If the trail is heavily advertised, frequented by tourists or feels like a
dog park, I'm highly unlikely to use it at all.

e Homeless

e Just as long as | feel safe on it, that's the most important thing!

e None

e The train

e Pavingis preferable to gravel etc.

e Train horn, train diesel or fuel oil exhaust. Tracks are just too close.

e Not paved would rule out cycling for us, but not walking

e | would limit my use of the trail if: it is gravel, if it has a brick path (too rough), restrooms are not convenient,
the chamber caboose obstructs or divides the trail, the trail is not well maintained, it is a mix of difficult
transitions such as gravel to paved, a split around the chamber caboose, difficult street crossings.

e None

e Lack of cell service for safety. Lack of restroom facilities when too far out of town.

o ifitistoo busy, we probably would avoid it.

e Not paved

e Asfar away from railroad and busy streets as possible

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e Pathway not paved. No amenities, close proximity to the railroad tracks.

e Not paved.

e All of the above

e None

e If it was really muddy during the rainy season.

e if it was right on the highway without a guardrail

e Too many curbs or stairs for bike.

e Needs to be paved

o Needs to be relatively level and paved.

e Not at this time

e Not paved. No guardrails from Highway. No reduced speed on highway through rockaway (25mph from high
school to Washington st)

e N/A

e Condition of pathway.

o Noise. Litter. Trip hazards.

e If not paved, or if not a level pathway.

o Nothing!

e Ifitis safe then it will be used.

o Nothing, | will definitely use it unless | feel unsafe by myself

e None

e If homeless or criminal elements were there.

e Trash and homeless people

e Getting hit by bicycle

e  Proximity to highway

e personal safety and prevention of parking lot crime

e We don't need a path

e None. Just having the right-of-way to use is awesome!

e Pave or gravel - too wet here for dirt, | suggest raised paths on several points (to aid flats and width
optimization), make wider at high traffic segments. | have walked/biked to evaluate!

* Not kept clean, too uneven for jogging, unsafe with crossing car traffic

e Travels on east of railroad

e crowded or interrupted with tourist making it hard for bikes to use. would not use as much or by bike if not
paved.

e Difficult walking or biking surface. Excessive traffic or noise.

e Not paved paths, all the above

e None

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e | would use it no matter what. Would prefer paved but if that holds up project then gravel.

e Homeless encampments, safety

e Any kind of vegetation spray

e | hope the path can be paved where it goes right through town, | think that will help with navigation and the
most crowded area. The rest of it can be some kind of crushed granite or other pervious surface.

e Large rocks, such as those used under the railroad tracks, would limit my usage. They are too hard to walk
on.

e Trail not paved, no close restrooms, no bike racks, trail paved with bricks instead of smooth pavement

e Must have a smooth surface; not gravel. Must not remove parking from core commercial district.

e Things that pose dangers for little kids would keep us from using it. Paving would make it easier with strollers
and getting kids to and from places safer.

e Path not paved

e Too many bicycles are dangerous to walkers especially with dogs

e See above, just having a safe, accessible walkway

e Lack of paving, darkness, visibility, lack of awareness from 101 vehicle traffic, noise

o If the path were not paved.

e Homeless/Stranger Danger

e nolimit

e vehicle incursions

e Not paved

e Anunsaved path might limit use and create more frequent maintenance. If crossings were not well/marked
or signed, that would be discouraging.

e None

e Iftoo close to highway

e If the trail was unpaved and if it wasn't maintained (potholes and tree roots).

e Surface.

e None

e Vagrants, but that's the same everywhere.

e Not paved

e Nothing would concern me. Having an off-highway trail facility in this area would be a huge benefit not just
for residents and visitors to Rockway Beach, but also others living in adjacent communities. My only concern
is it not being built. This could be a catalyst for more of these types of projects in Tillamook County, which
currently has virtually none.

e overcrowding, line of sight at crossings and on path

e None

e Unkept

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e If it felt dangerous in a crime way. If you had to cross a highway or get into heavy or close traffic.

e No concerns - we need to get people off of the tracks and US 101

e not paved.

o Not paved would be fine, excessive road crossings could be an issue.

e Not paved makes it dangerous for narrow tire bikes to traverse

e bad crossing with cars

e Unpaved; too narrow; poor connections to adjacent streets/destinations/businesses

e Unpaved; too narrow; poor connections to adjacent streets/destinations/businesses

o homeless druggies

e Ifit wasn't safe.

e mixing with cars.

e Hard to use with a walker. no stops available to rest.

e If not separated by physical barrier from traffic,

e Noise and poor air quality from nearby roads and other sources.

e none

e Lack of quality paving.

e ifit's not paved, it will just end up being a muddy, rocky mess and be a waste of time and a lot of money. It
would need constant maintenance if not paved.

e Not paved.

e None

e Slick roads and dense seasonal fog!

e Unwanted fast access to private property by undesirable activity

e Proximity to the highway

e Build it and | will use it.

e Too many parked cars moving in and out near the other. | have little kids.

o Homelessness, drug use, mentally ill folks pitching a tent on their way from the valley to the coast.

e All mentions

e This is going to cause more congestion and cause accidents.

o safety when trains are passing by

e All the above plus accidents by car and/or trains. No enforced clean up of potential littering, camping (like
along many of Portland’s bike paths). Currently RR tracks and crossings are poorly maintained

e Ppl camping along trail,

e Concerned about buckling pavement and road crossings (side roads or driveways that cross the trail)

e Pathway that is not paved, traffic noise

e I'm 66. Right now | could make it the entire way from Banks. Just finish it!

e None

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e Ifit’s not connected to regular pedestrian routes, eg if it does t span the whole way including across bridges

e Crime, druggie, and risking personal safety. Also does the cell phone work on it?

e Aslong asit’s safe and reasonably easy, | don’t feel we would be limited in using it.

o No parking

e | do not like crossing railroad tracks on my bicycle

o If it were not kept swept clean of gravel, broken glass, and broken branches. Those are common hazards on
that stretch of road’s shoulder.

e  Proximity to the highway makes it unpleasant. It must be separated. Paint and plastic are not sufficient
barriers to multi-ton metal death monsters.

o | would be concerned about people behaving badly. Skateboarders or bikers taking up too much space and
going too fast. Walkers 3 or 4 abreast taking the whole path. Walkers staring at their phones, oblivious to
everything until they run into someone. There has to be a way to sort the various types of users - walkers,
runners, bikers, shoppers, children, elderly, etc so they can be in a lane that's safe for their speed.

e rain

e  Car cross traffic

¢ Not paved would definitely limit the use of a walker or wheelchair by one or more family members.

e If the path wasn’t paved.

o Not paved, bicycles going fast

e Safety

e Noisy cars and mixed users walking and biking.

e toclose to train

o close to highway

e Non paved areas

e Heavy car traffic at crossings, people driving or riding motorcycles on the path, no buffer between car traffic
and the path

e Traffic too close

e None.

e Nothing.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

Q6 What, if any, preferences or concerns do you have about the future
alignment/route of this pathway? (ex. That it travels along the west/east side of the
railroad tracks in a particular area, etc.)

Answered: 111 Skipped: 47

e | am the director at Camp Magruder, and we are a summer camp, outdoor school site, and retreat center just
west of Highway 101 near Barview. | am interested/concerned about where the trail will run adjacent to
camp and the possibility of increased trespassing, but am also intrigued by how it may offer opportunities for
us to offer hospitality under the right circumstances.

e it should follow the river as the rail bed now does...

e N/A

e Parking sounds like we may loose a lot of parking. We can not afford to loose our parking.

e The area that goes through the mountains should be left alone and not flooded with people. Just another
tourist area that will ruin Tillamook county

e None

e None

® noconcerns

e None

e The honking of train

e No preference

e West side please

e | am concerned that the Salmonberry Trail Foundation or Altra are planning a trail design that gives
prominence to the chamber caboose. The chamber is a small temporary nonprofit renter/lessee along the
trail and may not be in existence a few years down the road. The trail will be existence for 100 years plus. It
needs to have preeminence over everything along the trail, not just the chamber. |am concerned that
homes and businesses along Miller Street continue to have as much parking as possible. | favor ending the
lease with the Coast Railroad north of the Wayside, removing the tracks and making the section from the
Wayside to Nedonna Beach a "rail to trails" and quickly grade and pave that section. | favor continuing the
"rail with trails" section only from Garibaldi to Rockaway Wayside.

e None

e That walkers/bikers will be so close to the Hwy. Bikers/Walkers cutting across the Hwy unexpectedly in front
of cars. | think the trains will be less of a concern than extra pedestrians popping in/out of traffic
unexpectedly.

e Na

e Concerned that already limited parking availability will be comromised and/or eliminated.

e West side of the RR tracks for safety.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e none

e Not sure

e |east amount of disruption to parking

e Both sides as needed. Less earth moving is more.

e Along the west side of tracks

e Concerns are where people will cross the highway if only on one side

e Very concerned about the parking you will take away from the area in the center of town on the west side of
101. We have little to no parking on summer days and to reduce it further will have huge impacts on the
businesses on the West side of 101

e Accessibility. Maintenance.

e concerned about the high traffic area from South 2nd thru the wayside area. Concerns about congestion
especially in the summertime and also loss of parking on Miller street for residences and businesses

e Limit, yet have appropriate access for crossing 101

o safety for stupid people

e Aslong asit’s separated from 101 then it’s good

e To make sure there are safe pedestrian crossings over the railroad tracks and Highway 101.

e No parking for Rockaway Beach

e Too close to railway

e Concern homeless camps would spring up along the trail.

e Encouraging congestion and foot traffic

e Having a safe buffer from the active railroad tracks. No fence needed, just an obvious buffer: ditch, heavy
landscaping.

e Majority of route west side of tracks, however there are (city center) segments which must be on east side;
believe raised-path (like the cedar boardwalk) should be in place. Sensors prompting traffic alerts would be
good at downtown and RR crossings (like exist in tunnels for cyclists).

e More concerned about north/south reach. Ideally as contiguous as possible regarding east/west position.

e Travel on west of rsilroad

e Just the crowd of people in the area making it hard to pass through on bike.

e None

e Not sure, some areas, one way, other areas, the other way

e Access to town shopping and restaurants

e No concerns except the best would be the path away from highways, more secluded path.

e East side of tracks

e None

o | believe that the preferred pathway of the focus groups | participated in was the one where it crosses the
road as it goes through town. The path splits, with the bike pass staying by the railroad track and the walking

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

path flipping to the east sidewalk along 101. | really like this idea because | think that automatically people
will want to walk by the shops — better not to try to fight that. Build it into the pathway be sure to put some
bike racks in the wayside area so that bikers can safely leave their bikes on the West side of 101 while they
crossover to go to the shops. Of course they can also go to the shops on the west side of the railroad track
from that location.

e |t would make sense for the path to be on the east side of the railroad tracks to avoid having people
unloading from the train onto the path. Also, most of the businesses and the Cedar Tree Trail are on the east
side, so they would be easier to access without having to cross the tracks if the path was on the east side.

e That the trail be carefully designed in the downtown corridor to prevent loss of parking spaces.

e Must not remove any parking as each parking space represents money to our businesses. Removing parking
would negatively impact tourism as tourists just drive on to the next town if they can’t easily access parking.
In fact, we need to extend parking spaces north of Nehalem St and south of S 2nd along 101.

e Not sure

e Path of least resistance - where it will provide the best, most accessible and safest route

e No concerns

e No preferences or concerns

e trail with rails

e none other than it gets done before | die

e None.

e None

e No concerns, others than switching from west to east side of tracks could prove dangerous for pedestrians
and bicyclists, would like to have flashing crosswalks at busy intersections

e That the trail is between Hwy 101 and the railroad tracks.

e None.
e None
e None.
e None

e No strong preferences, only what makes sense from a design and function perspective. | feel it is more
important to proceed with something that functions well, but not get delayed by trying to please everyone,
because that will never happen.

e consistant side of the tracks

e None

e None

e | don't know enought about it to say.

e Loss of city parking

e maintenance

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e NA

e This survey should have started with an introduction to the alignment of this section

e carfree

e waste of mony and recources

e The route should support local businesses (or at least not get in the way of their foot traffic.)

e that it will not prioritize safety

e No

e none

e | don't know enough to say.

e No concerns. Stop planning and just do it!

e Make it go as long down 101 as possible! It's just not safe to walk or bike on 101 with so many visitors (and
locals) driving like idiots.

e None

o Blue Dodge +1971-427nine8three8

o Based on other areas that have added symilar pathes it is not good for the community

e West of tracks where possible

e Safe and separate from automobile and truck or trailer traffic

e | hopeit’'s west of 101 so it connects the community to nature and the beach

e Nonw

e Nocomment?

e Move it off the highway

e Living full time on Breaker St. just south of Washington, we are concerned about parking and people being
dumped into the neighborhood at the end of the trail looking for parking and beach access. Lots of ppl will
want to walk the whole trail and start at one end or the other. Also, proximity to the Big Cedar Trail that is
basically at the south end of the Salmonberry Trail is already experiencing parking issues. We support this
project. However, this will impact our already chaotic rental dominated neighborhood. We hope you realize
this and try to take steps to mitigate the impact.

e No preferec

e None

e Private property rights. |think you are just giving criminals another access point. And giving homeless
another camping spots to vilify.

e Asfar away of any railroad tracks or other impediments would be preferable.

e None

e Need to keep existing parking spots if possible

e Doesn’t matter to me as long as there is access to 101 often enough for emergencies.

e Safety is the single most important factor.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

e | don't like the idea of a path between the tracks and the highway. | like the idea of a path on both the east
and west sides of the highway, making a nice walkable loop for visitors.

e nothing

e Make sure, that the railroad, has its right of way, for future railroad commuter trains.

e | would love to see the path as far from 101 as possible. | am also anxious to see what the future holds for the
area of 101 by the three Graces. | have ridden the entire Oregon coast bike route many times. The stretch of
101 between Bar View and Garibaldi definitely needs attention.

e No concerns.

o No preference

e the speed limit from and through town to Washington st should be only 25 miles per hour.

e  Proximity to the roadway, and ease of bike riders to cross any streets near the path. People riding bikes need
to feel safe and there shouldn't be much out of direction travel

e N/A

e None

e No preference. Just having will be amazing.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



alta

Q7 How would you describe yourself? (Select all that apply)

Answered: 155

A resident of
Rockaway Beach

A business
owner in
Rockaway Beach

A resident of
the local area,
but not of...

A visitor to
Rockaway Beach

0% 10% 20% 30%

ANSWER CHOICES

A resident of Rockaway Beach

A business owner in Rockaway Beach

A resident of the local area, but not of Rockaway Beach

A visitor to Rockaway Beach
TOTAL

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.

40%

50%

26

Skipped: 3

60%

70%

80%

90%

Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

100%

RESPONSES
26.45%

5.81%

33.55%

34.19%

MEMORANDUM

41

52
53
155



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

alta

Q 8 Please include the zip code where you live.
Answered: 156 Skipped: 2

The chart below shows the top 9 locations of respondents. Zip Codes with 2 or fewer responses were not included in
the chart and totaled 54 respondents.

Zip Codes of Respondents
50
45
40
35
30
25

20
15
10
) B B B B B o = -

97136 97141 97107 97130 97131 97118 97206 97202 97134 97030
Rockaway Tillamook Garibaldi Manzanita Nehalem Garibaldi Portland Portland Oceanside Gresham
Beach

(6]

*A note from Mayor Charles McNeilly:

“l have been asked by a business owner what consideration was given to the proposed pedestrian path of the
Salmonberry Trail down the east side of 101 along the sidewalk from S. 3rd to N. 3rd with the bike trail continuing on
the west side of 101.

She is quite concerned about the loss of parking on Miller St. between S. 3rd and S. 1st.”

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 27



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

Virtual & In-Person Interested Parties Meetings Feedback

The project team held a virtual meeting, immediately followed by an in-person meeting at Rockaway City Hall on
February 19, 2025. The purpose of these meetings was to hear from the community whether the path should be on
the East or West side of the rail tracks for the section of trail between Washington St and S 3™ Ave. Residents near
this trail section were sent a mailer invitation to this meeting. The project team was concerned that many residents
might oppose the West-side of the rail alignment because of its proximity to private property. However, during these
meetings, many residents and other stakeholders responded that they preferred the West-side alignment due to the
better user experience it would provide, and because it is safer than the East-side alignment. Meeting transcripts are
listed below:

Wed. Feb. 19, 2025
Virtual Meeting via Teams 4:30 pm — 5:30 pm
In-Person Meeting at Rockaway City Hall 5:30 pm — 6:30 pm

Agenda

Mike presents:
e Project overview & scope
e Alignment options for trail segment south of S 3™ Ave

Q & A from Public

Meeting Goals:

- Share project overview, scope, and alignment options to Public on project
- Discuss alignment options with public

Attendees

Mike Rose, Alta

Hannah Hefner, Alta

Caroline Crisp, ODOT

Luke Shefford, City Manager Rockaway Beach

Charles, Mayor of Rockaway Beach

Bill & Marilyn, City Council members of Rockaway Beach
Michael, STIA

Public

Key Takeaways

VIRTUAL MEETING — 20 attendees
Bill, Resident 624 se 101, own Octopus Inn & kids work at the Pronto Pup

e East side alignment seems dangerous

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

o Bill prefers west side for a safer path
e Concerned about Saltair creek survey staking (we’re doing a hydraulic model)

Debbie, has property 461 S miller

e Isthere parking going in? (No, not is this area we’re considering parking)
e  Wants entire width of Miller paved

Craig

e Concerned about Trees on west side, and on east side
e He wants to see those trees remain
e later added he supports tree/ veg replacement and a vegetative privacy buffer between path and homes

Terry, 477 S Miller

e Concerned about trail on miller street, how does trail and street
e  Wants the entire width of miller paved instead of just Miller
e Wants to be on the east side of the railroad tracks

Kate
e Wants east side, her property would be right next to trail
Chuck
e West side
Sandra, community member
e West side, she likes to walk in this area
Sheila, lives on highway on south end

e West side is better because it’s safer- she’s seen someone hit crossing an intersection
e Insummer a lot of distracted driving

Caroline opened a poll in the chat about which alignment is preferred

Michelle chimed in with some support for the west side alignment, but not resident

IN PERSON MEETING - 28 attendees
Q’s:
e  How will kids cross to high school (Mike answered probably RRFB)
e  Will there be consideration for lowering speed limit? Q for ODOT — Mike answered probably no but not sure
—Jamie Smidt at ODOT gave some response to this resident, telling him he could get an answer at this
meeting, he said he will reach out via email

Resident, between Washington and 7t

e How is water going to be channeled

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

dila

Two people want Cedar Tree to be connected to trail
Jerry Barrington — resident, board member of water district

e Prefers west side for safety

e Wants slower speed limit, limit is 30, should be 25 like Garibaldi

e Responded to Damien, comment in support of trail

e (Can the train have a brighter light when it reverses? -we can mention when we talk to rail

Not resident — Damien from jetty fishery

e  “Embattled” with trail and rail

o do we really have 60" ROW — we will verify

e Do we have to follow same bylaws for policing law enforcement, how do you move squatters from trail

e Whatis 10% cost estimate, does it include maintenance? how are we going to maintain this?

e Heisinterested in if it's on the west or east side — next section of salmonberry trail is North of our section
(we are on east at that point)

°
Marylyn, city councilor
Mayor responded

e Rockaway understands the
Resident

e Likes idea of west side for the experience, wants to be further from traffic, closer to vegetation
e  Only section in nature, argument for west side

Resident — curious about if water is considered- water troughs on both sides
Resident asked about diff between 10% & 30% design
Resident N of Washington St — harbor retreat center

e Loves the idea of the trail for the retreat users
e Thinks safety is most important
e Thinks it’s best if the trail doesn’t change sides too often

Bike rider for several years

e Linked his own path from pansy in twin rocks to beach street, only
e Makes no sense to have on east side unless property owners are unhappy

Resident

e  Washington north, she’s not worried about residents, big setback
e Short portion close to homes
e Staying on west side will be very good

Will there be vegetation between trail and houses?

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.



Resolution 2025-13 - Exhibit B

MEMORANDUM

alta

e Wants added veg, someone seconds that
e  We should consider adding trees or veg buffer

1 property was concerned about drainage going from their property to the ditch on the west side

e 1 person there wants it on the east side because they like the trees and use the west side as a nice backyard,
but sounds like they would tolerate west side
e 2 other workers at that retreat center wanted west side

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 31



	1. City Council Workshop Agenda 2025-03-12
	3b. Council Meeting Rules and Procedures Policy - Proposed Amendments 2025 v2
	3c. Resolution 2025-13 Approving Alignment Salmonberry Trail wEx
	Resolution 2025-13 Approving Alignment
	Alternative Analysis Memo #2r2.pdf
	Alignment Drawings

	Rockaway Beach Engagement Summary_25.02.24.pdf
	Introduction
	Tabling Event Feedback
	Survey Results
	Appendix A
	Virtual & In-Person Interested Parties Meetings Feedback
	Agenda
	Meeting Goals:
	Attendees
	Key Takeaways




